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Introduction 
 

1. Bosnia and Herzegovina is a party to the Barcelona Convention, and the country 
adopted as early as 2005 a NAP for the reduction of marine pollution caused by 
land-based activities. Since November 2009 with the Marrakesh Declaration 
adopted by the Contracting Parties to the Barcelona Convention, one major focus 
targets regional coordination and enhanced cooperation in the adaptation to climate 
change. 

2. As a reminder, during the period 2031–2060, climate change is expected to 
seriously impact Bosnia and Herzegovina, with the temperature projected to raise 
from 0.7 to 1.6 °C for each 1°C increease at the global level. This could result in see 
rise level, coastal erosion and more severe flooding. For this reason, an Integrated 
Coastal Zone Management (ICZM) action plan, from 2010 to 2015, includes various 
initiatives for adaptation to climate change.  

3. The Mediterranean Integrated Climate Information Platform (MedICIP) is the first 
pillar 1 of the UNEP MAP (Mediterranean Action Plan) and the Plan Bleu project 
towards a regional adaptation framework for climate change in the Mediterranean. 
Its purpose is to “develop knowledge, data acquisition and exchange of information 
on climate variability and change in the Mediterranean region, on the expected 
impacts (on society, the economy and natural resources), on vulnerability and on 
adaptation measures, and document good practices of integrated climate risk 
management and climate adaptation in support to the Integrated Coastal Zone 
Management (ICZM) in the Mediterranean Basin, to facilitate the information 
exchange and to enable scientists, the civil societ and and policy makers to access 
these data”. 

4. At the same time, it is important to bear in mind the European context, especially 
for the North Mediterranean countries involved in MedICIP: in addition to Bosnia 
and Herzegovina, three other countries are involved in the project: Albania, 
Montenegro and Croatia, the latest becoming a new EU Member country from July 
1st, 2013. The EU members countries with Mediterranean coastal zones are similarly 
committed through a plateform called Climate-Adapt1. 

5. Having said that, it must be added that the context of Bosnia and Herzegovina is 
specific compared to the other North Mediterranen countries involved in the 
“Integration of climatic variability and change into national strategies to implement 
the ICZM protocol in the Mediterranean” project, for three main reasons: 

5.1. First and above all, the geographical patterns of the Bosnian coastal zones, with a 
coastline of circa 25 kilometers, but with a more important inland, parallel to a 
long coastline belonging to Croatia, make it an unusual case. 

5.2. The second pattern of Bosnia and Herzegovina regards its specific institutional 
and political organization. 

                                                      
1 http://climate-adapt.eea.europa.eu 
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5.3. Finally, although the country is committed at the international level, there is no 
special legislation on climate change in force in Bosnia and Herzegovina either at 
the State or entity levels.  

6. This report is presenting the results of the national workshop held in Sarajevo, April 
23 and 24, 2013, to validate the inputs of the country – in terms of data, indicators, 
sources of information, etc. – to the MedICIP portal.  
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Objectives and expectations of the 
workshop 

 
7. The objectives of the worksop are taken from the document that was circulated to 

the participants with the agenda, and splitted into three specific objectives 
 
8. Objective 1. Review of the existing and missing data with the national report as a 

starting point 
 

• Present the main points of the national report prepared during the inception 
phase. 

• Discuss about the compilation of the existing monitoring programmes on CVC. 
• Select the available data that can be shared in order to feed the MedICIP portal. 
• Identify gaps. 
• Define modalities of data extraction and sharing options. 

 
9. Objective II. Present the MedICIP Portal (content, objectives, modalities, users’ 

needs) 
 

• Present and discuss contents of the portal (MedICIP). 
• Analysis of users’ needs and metadata: form (table, graph, and links towards 

reports...) and topic/sector (water, agriculture, tourism,). 
 
10. Objective III. Start selecting relevant indicators 
 

• Review the first selection of indicators. 
• Suggest a core set needed for the country. 
• Discuss indicators and data: which methodology for the selection? 

 
11. The expectations were also cleary presented in the documentation and at the 

beginning of the workshop.  
 

• Production of a working factsheet for the analysis of user’s needs which will be 
taken into account in the MedICIP portal items. 

• National report completed with the concerned institutions. 
• Validation, by the participants, of data and gaps highlighted in the report. 
• A draft of a first core set of indicators. 

 
12. The agenda of the workshop is presented in Annex 1. In total, 12 experts 

participated to the workshop, which was co-chaired by Mr. Senad Oprašić, Head of 
the Departement of Environmental Protection, Ministry of Foreign Trade and 
Economic Relations of Bosnia and Herzegovina and by Alexandre Borde, from Plan 
Bleu. The facilitation were organized by Rijad Tikvesa, from Ekotim, and the 
translation by Abdulla. The next sections present the results of the workshop. 
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BiH data available and gaps 
 

13. The fourth session took the form of a working session with participants reviewing in 
details the national report and its summary (also called Fact Sheet). It enabled also 
to inventory the existing data and identify missing information. 

14. Several participants mentionned that at the State level, there is no active monitoring 
system, for instance to verify compliance with regulations concerning any 
environment and state of the environment because such activities are regulated by 
provisions of the Entities. 

15. The table below presents the key sectors vulnerable to climate change, as identified 
in the Initial National Communication from 2009, and reminded by the participants.  

 

 
 

16. Using the categories of indicators as presented in the slides and the most vulnerable 
sectors to climage change, the relevant institutions gathering or able to elaborate 
these indicators were listed. These data, indicators and institutions are proposed for 
their publication within MedICIP. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

7 

Bosnia and Herzegovina national workshop 

Type of indicators Institutions Website 

Meteo-data Federalni hidrometeorološki zavod BiH
Republički hidrometeorološki zavod RS 

http://www.fhmzbih.gov.ba
http://www.rhmzrs.com 

Marine & coastal zone Agencija za vodno područje Jadranskog mora (AVP) http://www.jadran.ba
Biodiversity & 
ecosystems 

Federal Ministry for environment and tourism
(FP for CBD : Mehmed Cero & Senka Barudanović)  

http://www.fmoit.gov.ba
 

Terrestrial/Coastal 
ecosystems 

HEIS (Hydro-Engineering Institute Sarajevo)
FMAWMF  (Federal Minister of Agriculture, Water 
Management and Forestry) 
(FP for Barcelona Convention and MAP : Tarik Kupusović) 

http://www.fmpvs.gov.ba
http://www.heis.com.ba 
 

Hydrology and water 
resources  

Agencija za vodno područje Jadranskog mora (AVP)
HEIS (The Hydro-Engineering Institute Sarajevo) 
FHMI (Federalni hidrometeorološki zavod BiH) 
Republički hidrometeorološki zavod RS 

http://www.jadran.ba
http://www.heis.com.ba 
http://www.fhmzbih.gov.ba 
http://www.rhmzrs.com 

Economy data  Agencija za statistiku (BHAS)
Agency for civil protection (ACP)  

http://www.bhas.ba 
http://www.fucz.gov.ba/fucz  

Agriculture data FMAWMF  (Federal Minister of Agriculture, Water 
Management and Forestry) 

http://www.fmpvs.gov.ba

Human wealth  
Ministry of health Federation B&H (MHFBIH)
Ministry of health of Republika Srpska (MHRS) 
Institutes for public health  (IPH) 

http://www.fmoh.gov.ba
http://www.vladars.net 
http://www.zzjzfbih.ba 

Climate and GHG http://www.unfccc.ba
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Outputs and recommendations 
 

17. There was a general consensus about the conclusions from the national report 
(January 2011 by Aleksandar Knežević and Vedad Suljić), with some updates to be 
made. The table below is presenting the primary and secondary adaptation 
measures proposed in the report. 

  

18. The country is preparing an adaptation strategy and the MedICIP project is seen as 
a very useful tool to finalize the strategy. 

19. It is recommended that the Plan Bleu continues to work with the national Ministry 
of Foreign Trade and Economic Relations (MoFTER) as this is the obvious interface 
with the complex institutional situation of the country. The nature of the 
institutions may though be a cause for delays. Still, the MoFTER is in the right 
position to give to the Plan Bleu the authorizations to publish on MedICIP the 
proper information about Climate Vulnerability and Change in ICZM. 

20. The country is a candidate to the European Union. Hence, the cooperation with 
MoFTER should also follow the lines of the EU Acquis. Annex III is presenting the 
most relevant answers of Bosnia and Herzegovina in relation to the MedICIP. 
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Annexes 
 

 

Annex 1. Program of the workshop 

 
April 23, 2013

9:00-9:30 Introduction for opening of the workshop (Senad Oprašić, Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic 
Relations of Bosnia and Herzegovina) 

9:30-9:50 1. Presentation of the scope and objectives (Alexandre Borde, consultant, Plan Bleu) 
 Reminder of the objectives of the project and those of the national workshop  
 Agreement on the objectives of the workshop 

9:50-10:00 Round table 
10:00-10:30  Presentation of the national report about « Climatic variability and change into 

national strategies to implement ICZM Protocol » and introduction of the main part 

of the national report (Senad Oprašić, Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Relations 
of Bosnia and Herzegovina) 

10:30-11:00 Discussion 
11:00-11:30 Coffee break 
11:30-12:10 2. Presentation of the possible content of the MedICIP portal and the indicators 

(Alexandre Borde, consultant, Plan Bleu) 
 Presentation of the functionalities and contents of MedICIP. 
 Presentation of the first possible set of indicators and discussion about the 

methodology for their selection. 
12:10-12:30 Discussion 
12:30-14:00 Lunch time 
14:00-16:30 

 
 
 

3. Analyse of users’ need (Alexandre Borde, consultant, Plan Bleu) 
 Updating of the national report and and the fact sheet 
 Working session on data availability, data gaps, sources of raw data 
 Identification of the main institutions involved in information related to adaptation 

to climate change: 
‐ What kind of data will be available and could be exchanged? 
‐ What are the data networks in the country? 
‐ How do they work?  
‐ Data sharing options. 

April 24, 2013
9:30-10:30 Results of the working session and conclusions (Senad Oprašić, Ministry of Foreign Trade and 

Economic Relations of Bosnia and Herzegovina) 
10:30-12:00 Next steps (Alexandre Borde, consultant, Plan Bleu)
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Annex II. List of participants 
 
Name Institution Email Phone 
Zinela Mujakovic FMOIT zinela@fmoit.gov.ba 033 276 744 
Vanda Medic MVTEO vanda.medic@mvteo.gov.ba 033 206 141 
Urop Jebtuu MVTEO urop.jebtuu@mvteo.gov.ba  
Nada Mlinear MVTEO nada.mlinear@mvteo.gov.ba  
Senad Oprasic MVTEO senad.oprasic@mvteo.gov.ba 033 206 141 
Enes Seperovic MVTEO enes.seperovic@mvteo.gov.ba 033 226 461 
Elma Kuldija FMPVS elma.kuldija@fmpvs.gov.ba 033 926 632 
Imra Hodzic IHGF imra.hodzic@heis.com.ba 33 212 466 
Sanda Midzic Kurtagic IHGF sanda.midzic-kurtagic@heis.com.ba 33 212 466 
Edin Kraljusic AVP  ekraljusic@jadran.ba 036 397 881 
Alexandre Borde Plan Bleu aborde@carbonium.fr +33 9 54905347
Rijad Tikvesa Ekotim rijad@ekotim.net +387 62 381 701
Abdullah Ekotim  
 

Some pictures from the working session 
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Annex III. Abstracts from the “ANSWERS TO THE LIST OF EU QUESTIONS ON CHAPTER 
27 ENVIRONMENT”, October 2012 (pages 143 to 145, pages 157 to 159, pages 166 to 168). 
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Annex IV. List of presentations and other documents made available during the workshop 

 
• Environmental Performance Reviews, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Second Review, 

UN Economic Commission for Europe, 2011, 207 pages. 
 

• Answers to the list of EU questions on chapter 27 Environment, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina, Council of Ministers, Sarajevo, October 2012, 358 pages. 
 

• Bosnia and Herzegovina and Mediterranean, powerpoint presentation by Senad 

Oprašić, April 23-24, 2013, 24 slides. 

 
• Integracija klimatskih promjena u strategije implementacije Protokola ICZM na 

Mediteranu – Bosna i Hercegovina, powerpoint presentation by Senad Oprašić, 

April 23-24, 2013, 20 slides 
 

• State of the Environment report of Bosnia and Herzegovina 2012, Ministry of 
Foreign Trade and Economic Relations, 260 pages. 
 

• Šematski prikaz vlasti u BiH, pdf document, 6 pages. 
 

• Note on Klimatske Promjene / Climate changes indicators, 10 pages. 
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Annex V. Fact sheet 
 
 

Bosnia and Herzegovina 
 
 

Context  
 

• The BH coastal area cannot be analyzed isolated without considering plans and 
proposal from the neighboring countries (Federation of BiH, Republic of Srpska and 
Republic of Croatia and Montenegro). Neretva and Trebišnjica Rivers are 
fundamental resources for Bosnia and Herzegovina, and are very important for 
Croatia and Montenegro too.  

• B&H has very limited adaptive capacity to address climate risks. Complicated 
governance structures, a lack of key strategic documents and supporting regulations, 
limited human resource capacity, and financial constraints lead to very limited capacity 
to respond to climate threats and adapt to climate change in a systematic, integrated 
way; i.e., through proactive adaptation measures. At the same time, low public 
awareness and economic constraints in industry and households limit the capacity of 
those potentially affected by climate threats to undertake autonomous adaptation 
measures.  

• By the adoption of entity Laws on Environmental Protection (2002/2003), BiH 
created conditions in which it could begin organized activities in the area of education 
and awareness-raising, which were to have been gradually implemented through 
institutional strengthening, inter-sectoral cooperation, and a supportive regulatory 
framework. On the whole, it may be concluded that until now all these activities have 
not been well organized, and that the results have been modest.  

• Knowledge and awareness of climate change in BiH is not sufficient so currently 
operational programs to inform the public are under preparation.  

 
Operation (it’s also a policy constraints)  
 

• The only state-level ministry that has responsibility for environmental issues – Ministry 
of Foreign Trade and Economic Relations of BIH (MoFTER) – only deals with 
selected aspects of environmental issues, primarily those related to international 
relations.  

• BiH does not have the organized system of scientific research so no monitoring of 
environmental impacts is available  

 
Data available  
 

• A section on GHG Reporting along with BiH Air EIS questionnaires and the Review 
of the Air Emissions Information System were developed during the EU CARDS-
funded “Support to Air Monitoring” project. BiH EIS questionnaires, along with the 
additional pollutant release and transfer register (PRTR) reporting questionnaire, 



 
 

26 

Bosnia and Herzegovina national workshop 

should cover all the needs for collecting data for GHG emission calculations in line 
with the European guidelines.  

• A study should cover all hydrological stations in BiH in operation during a reference 
period (1960 - 1991 as a minimum), and after the war. Updating existing knowledge 
of the water regime in BiH is very important, including applied research on as-yet-
unknown hydrological relationships. Especially interesting aspects for consideration 
are: Changes in surface and groundwater systems / Floods / Droughts / Water 
quality; climate-related warming of lakes and riv.  

• The maximum, minimum and average values of monthly precipitation, for two 
periods of 26 years: 1956-1981 and 1982-2007 (for the non continental part).  

• Different sea-level trends: from a rise between +0.53 and +0.96 mm/y to a decrease 
between -0.50 and -0.82 mm/y, a range mainly due to local tectonic activity (Barić et 
al, 2008).  

• The Ministry of Environment and Tourism of FBiH, supporting a project of consulting 
companies and non-governmental organizations, has financed the formation of a 
climate change web portal1. The portal was made by the Regional Center for 
Education and Information on Sustainable Development in Southeastern Europe 
(REIC).This portal will be used to disseminate an electronic newsletter about climate 
change, which will be sent to subscribers, and to provide information to those 
offering services in the areas of mitigation and adaptation in BiH (and later in 
Southeastern Europe as a whole), such as consulting services in research, production, 
and engineering.  

• Primary adaptation measures and secondary adaptation measures are identified for 
the following fields: nature and environment, nature as resource, use of space, socio-
economic development. (Coming from the establishment of work group findings 
provided regarding the vulnerability and adaptation from the INC, where a division 
into four groups has been made).  

• Is a model currently under development? (The attempt by meteorologists to predict 
the state of the atmosphere).  

• A similar model already exists in Novi Sad developed by the Centre for meteorology 
and environmental predictions - Department of Physics Faculty of Science at the 
University of Novi Sad (Serbia). Because of the very small area it would be 
unreasonable and inappropriate to make a model for weather forecasting just for the 
BH coast. In this scenario the whole east Adriatic coast of Croatia and even the 
Montenegro’s coast should be considered  

• Under development: Historical and real-time information with respect to natural 
hazards will be gathered by satellite remote sensing, aerial photographs and by other 
conventional means and integrated with GIS Relational Database Management 
System (RDBMS). This results in an extensive geo-database.  

• Through specific model and GIS Relational Database Management System2 (RDBMS) 
the assessment of natural hazard vulnerability could be generated for BiH and 
Croatian coastal zone.  

 
 
 
Data gaps / Needs  
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• It should be particularly pointed out here that there is a need to further modernize 

the network by the introduction of Automatic Weather Stations and their 
connection into a system of automatic monitoring together with hydrological stations, 
particularly with the purpose of automatic monitoring and software control of the 
situation at river basins, as well as for planning water consumption for the needs of 
electricity supply, water supply, agriculture, other activities, and the population.  

• No comprehensive environmental monitoring and data collection system, which 
results in the lack of an information system for environmental protection.  

• Different data are gathered by various institutions without coordination and in the 
absence of a unified database.  

• No exchange of data and communication between the institutions gathering data and 
higher governmental agencies, nor is there information about existing data.  

• A lack of data and analysis to support decision-making and strategic planning in the 
sector (climate change impacts and water). The existing water management 
infrastructure is inadequate, and a lack of coordination at the national level and at the 
level of the Southeastern European region on research, planning, and management.  

• Does not have the management, technological and economic capabilities to adapt to 
climate changes.  

• Lack of financial funds, very few activities are directed on flood prevention.  
• Institutional Constraints : understaffing in environmental agencies remains a serious 

obstacle to fulfilment of the obligations of BiH considering the implementation of 
requirements under UNFCCC.  

• Statistics are incomplete and are compiled at the entity level.  
• The sectors which have priority policy and activity needs are3  
• No state body in charge of systematically providing information  

 
Needs  
 

 It is particularly important to inform the business community about climate change 
issues. This community needs two types of information:  

• Information on the extent to which conditions in the business environment have 
changed and may change in the future (e.g., changes in precipitation that are 
significant for agriculture and hydropower); and  
 
• Information on new technologies (the application of these technologies will not 
mitigate climate change in BiH, but their application will improve socio-economic 
development according to the principles of sustainable development).  
 

Strengths  
 

 One proposed measure to address shortcomings in current knowledge regarding the 
impacts of climate change on the water sector is the development of a Hydrological 
Information System (HIS). The HIS is not simply a database or archive, although it 
incorporates an archive. It is a logical and structured system to collect data that are 
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subsequently entered into the computer, checked and stored and where data may also 
be compared, associated, related and combined to provide information in a format 
suitable for users.  

Monitoring program / national plans and programs for monitoring  
 

 The modernization or establishment of a total of seven Class 1 weather stations in RS 
(Republic of Srpska) and further modernization of the 13 professional weather stations 
in FBiH (Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina). It is also necessary to establish a 
professional weather station in Brčko District. There is also a need to introduce 
Automatic Weather Stations connect them with hydrological stations, particularly with 
the purpose of automatic monitoring and software control of the situation at river 
basins, as well as for planning water consumption for the needs of electricity supply, 
water supply, agriculture, other activities, and the population.  

 To support and strengthen already implemented project, here a proposals for the full-
size project given:  

 
• First proposal: WOrk with Ministries On Climate Change – WOMOCC  
• Second proposal: DEvelopment of an mathematical MOdel for Weather forecast – 

DEMOW  
• Third proposal: DEtailed Vulnerability ASsessment study with a GIS database - DEVAS  

 
Network / transboundary / regional networks and structures  
 

• The energy community of the SEE Region;  
• The Regional Cooperation Council  
• The Belgrade Climate Change Initiative.  

 
List of institutions  
 

• Several institutions in BiH are dealing with flood prevention.  
• In this area the Agency for the water area of Adriatic Sea and Agency for river basin 

of River Trebisnjica have in their activities also some flood prevention programs and 
plans.  

• The Tourist Association of BiH  
• Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Relations B&H 
• PAP/RAC National focal point: Hydro-Engineering Institute of Civil Engineering 

Faculty in Sarajevo  
• Ministry of Security B&H : is providing assistance after floods, for flood prevention 

there are no financial funds.  
• Ministry of Agriculture, Water Management and Forestry of Federation B&H  
• Ministry of Environment and Tourism of Federation B&H  

Vulnerable zones  
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Decrease of snowfall is especially characteristic, which will affect the water supply of 
underground aquifers. Lack of water will affect agriculture, hydro, population, water 
management.  
 

Key Sector Vulnerability Primary adaptation 
measures 

Secondary 
adaptation 
measures 

Coastal area  Erosion risk and soil 
deficiency due to sea 
level rise  
Increase in water 
temperature  

Inclusion in the coastal 
zones management 
programmes of the 
Republic of Croatia  

Reduction in 
anthropogenic 
impacts on the 
coastal and sea areas. 

Water 
management  

Changes in seasonal 
river flows  
Decrease in the 
quantity of water flow 
in rivers  
Difficulties in water 
supply for households 
and industry  

Construction dams and 
accumulation reservoirs 
for hydropower 
generation, agriculture, 
drinking water, tourism, 
fish-farming, etc.  

Training on the 
efficient use of water 
and reduction of 
losses in distribution  
Strengthening the 
system of water 
quantity monitoring 
and forecasting;  
Development of a 
Hydrological 
Information System  

 
Impacts  
 

• Rivers in the Dinara catchment basin will be greatly affected, particularly the Neretva 
and Trebišnjica Rivers due to SLR.  

• One of the main problems, due to the increase of precipitation, for the coastal zone 
are floods and soil erosion. The Ministry of Security is dealing with those issues. 
 

Scenario  
 
The scenario developed in the framework of the UNEP Programme on Climate Change in 
the Mediterranean Region (1990-1996) showed the most probable rise in the average sea 
level as 65+35 cm (REC, ECNC, 2008).  
 
For MedICIP: link towards all the literature  
 
International documents  
• PAP/RAC. 2007. Protocol on Integrated Coastal Zone Management in the 

Mediterranean  
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Internet web sites are dealing with climate change and variability.  
• Ministry of Physical Planning, Civil Engineering and Ecology of Republic Srpska - 

http://www.unfccc.ba  
• Regional Education and Information Centre for Sustainable Development in SEE 

(REIC) - http://www.klimatske-promjene.ba  
• http://siteresources.worldbank.org/EXTMETAP/Resources/CZMP-Bosnia,pdf.pdf  

National documents  
• Initial National Communication of Bosnia and Herzegovina under the United Nations 

Framework Convention on Climate Change (Ministry of Physical Planning, Civil 
Engineering and Ecology of Republic Srpska, October 2009)  

• National Report on current Policy, Procedures, Legal Basis and Practice of Marine 
Spatial Planning in Bosnia and Herzegovina (PAP/RAC 2007)  

• Fifth National Communication of the Republic of Croatia under the United Nation 
Framework Convention on the Climate Change 


